
 
  

 
 
 

P 
 
 
 

TOWN OF NEWTOWN LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL MEETING 

JANUARY 17, 2018 

NEWTOWN MUNICIPAL CENTER, NEWTOWN, CT 

MINUTES 

 

PRESENT: Chris Eide, Chris Smith, Jordana Bloom, Robert Pickard, Judit DeStefano, Ryan Knapp,  

Dan Wiedemann, Paul Lundquist, Phil Carroll, Kelley Johnson, Dan Honan. 

 

ABSENT: Jay Mattegat. 

 

ALSO PRESENT: First Selectman Dan Rosenthal, Finance Director Bob Tait, Director of Planning 

George Benson, Director of Parks and Recreation Amy Mangold, Edmond Town Hall Board of Managers 

Chair Margot Hall, 3 public, 2 press. 

 

CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Lundquist called the meeting to order with the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:30 pm. 

 

VOTER COMMENT: Ms. Jan Brown, 15 Lori Lynn Circle, Newtown – Ms. Brown is an Ambassador 

with USA Pickleball Association and spoke in advocacy of promoting and supporting pickleball in 

Newtown, she distributed a fact sheet and location schedule. (Attachment A) Ms. Brown said that 

pickleball is the fastest growing sport in the U.S., becoming very popular in Newtown with all ages 

especially seniors. Due to the sport’s popularity existing courts are in high demand and more courts are 

needed. Relining tennis courts could be an option and Ms. Brown has forwarded information to Ms. 

Mangold regarding that possibility. Ms. Brown said that Ridgefield has a good model with location and 

availability.   

 

MINUTES: MR. EIDE MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 10, 2018 

SPECIAL MEETING. SECOND BY MS. BLOOM. Mr. Honan pointed out two edits, correct the 

meeting location to Town Hall South and correct the spelling of Mr. Mattegat’s last name.  ALL IN 

FAVOR TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 10, 2018 SPECIAL MEETING 

WITH EDITS TO CORRECT MEETING LOCATION TO TOWN HALL SOUTH AND 

CORRECT THE SPELLING OF MR. MATTEGAT’S LAST NAME. (10-0) Mr. Smith abstained. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS: Board of Ed communications, excel version of debt indicator. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: None. 

 

FIRST SELECTMAN’S REPORT: First Selectman Rosenthal recapped items from the Board of 

Selectmen’s meeting, the owner of Lakeview Terrace offered a piece of land, conveying it to the Town, 

important to accept for drainage issues for road improvements, the Board of Selectman voted to approve 

to accept the land, item will come to the Legislative Council. First Selectman Rosenthal expressed an 

interest to preserve Cherry Grove Farm, more information and discussion is needed before the Town can 

3 PRIMROSE STREET 

NEWTOWN, CT 06470 

TEL. (203) 270-4201 

FAX (203) 270-4205 

www.newtown-ct.gov 

 

http://www.newtown-ct.gov/


LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 

 

 

 

2 

 

make any type of decision or commitment, perhaps to seek a conservation easement. First Selectman 

Rosenthal discussed the First Selectmen’s budget which the First Selectman are still in the process of fact-

finding, but First Selectman Rosenthal shared some key budget goals which include keeping increases as 

low as possible while preserving same services, increase the road account by $250,000, put a new 

purchasing agent into the budget sharing with the Board of Ed, implementing new pension actuarial 

calculation, reducing the discount rate from 7.5% to 7%, had an offset with medical self-insurance, 

removed capital requests and likely recommend using capital non-recurring, total cumulative requests 

from all departments is roughly 7.5% and were able to trim it back to 2.5%, without roads is 1.9%, wages 

and benefits $438,000 that represents contract negotiations, capital is $309,000 which $250,000 is for 

roads, operating expenses $263,000 debt service $53,000 increase, recommended reducing contingency, 

driving some of that change is budgeting registrars requests primaries this year, road salt and sand 

increased over the 5 year average, lightened up contingency, further discussion and debate continue in 

follow-up discussions. 

 

Mr. Lundquist thanked First Selectman Rosenthal for the overview on the budget and recommended to 

hold back on specific questions on the budget at tonight’s meeting in keeping with the agenda. 

 

Mr. Knapp had questions relating to land use, he asked about the process of going through development 

rights, appraisals, value, citing an example of a similar situation last year, First Selectman Rosenthal said 

the process is in the early stages, Mr. Benson explained that there are a lot of steps that need to be taken 

before the Town can consider a conservation easement, for example discussion with P & Z, conservation 

commission, reviewing appraisals. First Selectman Rosenthal said that the Newtown Forest Association is 

getting an appraisal to figure out how much money to raise. Mr. Knapp asked about time sensitivity. Mr. 

Benson said that the NFA specified time frame for their own fundraising efforts, Mr. Benson reiterated 

the project is still at the early stages, First Selectman Rosenthal said that as public and private 

partnerships are pursued, the NFA is strong in fundraising, and First Selectman Rosenthal hopes the Town 

will be able to contribute, subject to various approvals.  

Mr. Knapp asked about Lakeview Terrace, with the roads ordinance and new language, allows the First 

Selectman to exempt roads like Lakeview Terrace that would never meet standards, with acquisition of 

property that the land is only of value to the Town, would this fall under the parcels under $20,000 

exemptions. Mr. Benson said there is some value and varied instances, First Selectman Rosenthal 

reminded Council that the property is being given to the Town, Mr. Benson said that this parcel would 

probably fall under that exemption, and did not have specifics with him to provide a definite 

determination, but speculated that it might.  

Ms. DeStefano asked how the property value is arrived at. Mr. Benson said a professional, licensed 

appraiser figures out the value using different methods of appraising property value. 

Mr. Knapp added that in the ordinance there is language to address the challenges if the appraisal costs 

more than the property is worth, exemptions. Mr. Benson said that in those cases, property valued under 

$20,000 the department may use assessment to try to determine value. 

Mr. Carroll asked for clarification on Cherry Grove Farm, that it is just for the land not including the farm 

house and barns. First Selectman Rosenthal said that was correct and he explained a bit of history about 

the land and preservation efforts, the Town had an interest in trying to preserve the land in the past, the 

estate sold the land to a developer and the Newtown Forest Association is now trying to preserve a 

portion of the property, roughly 30 acres. Mr. Smith commented that there is Town open space, another 

40+ acres to coincide with other areas. Mr. Lundquist asked for clarification on how this project came 

about, though he did receive the fundraising letter from NFA, he asked is this a brand new conversation in 



LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 

 

 

 

3 

 

response to their fundraising letter. First Selectman Rosenthal explained that the NFA asked about 

funding in the open space account. The Town is supportive of efforts and needs to work together on how 

the Town can provide support, and has not committed on any funding.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

2018-2019 – 2022-2023 CIP: 

MR. HONAN MOVED TO ACCEPT THE 2018-2019 – 2022-2023 CIP AS RECOMMENDED 

BY THE BOARD OF FINANCE. SECOND BY MR. CARROLL.  

Mr. Lundquist asked Mr. Tait to speak about open space allocations historically and to discuss the two 

options, one of putting a placeholder of amount in CIP to use or do not use depending on the opportunity, 

and the other option to put into the year, then appropriate it, but don’t actually spend/bond it until the 

opportunity comes up. Mr. Tait said that since he has been here, the $10 million open space was 

appropriated all at once, $2 million in each year for 5 years, but the full amount was appropriated, not that 

it was bonded. One can appropriate and not bond. The advantage of appropriating makes it more efficient 

to act quickly, sometimes grants may come up and there is not much time to go through the process. If we 

go through the process first, the purchase would still have to be approved by the Legislative Council even 

though the money has already been appropriated. Mr. Lundquist asked if it had been appropriated, and 

there was not an opportunity that came up that year, how long would we be able to hold on to that 

appropriation in the CIP. Mr. Tait that would be up to the Legislative Council, it could stay open and be 

closed at any time by action of the Legislative Council.  

Mr. Wiedemann asked rather that setting money aside in appropriation, if a property came along, with 

grants attached, and money was not appropriated, could fund balance be used. Mr. Tait said that no, you 

cannot use fund balance without an appropriation, he explained it is not setting money aside, an 

appropriation is permission to spend. In the grant process, it is important see that the Town has authorized 

an appropriation, which is a permission to spend, and that the Legislative Council has acted. Once you do 

spend, typically it comes from bond proceeds. Another action would be necessary to use fund balance as 

other source of revenue. First Selectman Rosenthal noted Legislative Council approval is required before 

being able to spend. Mr. Honan asked about any detriment, regard to rating agencies, to take from fund 

balance, Mr. Tait said there is a fund balance policy and typically we do not like to draw from fund 

balance. 

Mr. Knapp expressed concern about an item that would not come back to the Legislative Council once a 

big authorization has been approved, changing definition of appropriation, description, being specific, 

change in past practice, policy precedent, and reconcile with  635B of the charter, and concern of giving 

the authorization to spend and it not coming back to the Legislative Council. First Selectman Rosenthal 

said he understands the concern and gave his word that he will not take it as authorization to do whatever 

he wants, he would not do that, he would consult with the Board of Selectmen and Legislative Council. 

Mr. Lundquist added that there is more than one path and to have some trust with each other. Ms. Johnson 

said that due to success in the past of obtaining grants, she would not want to compromise a winning 

strategy, if to use the CIP to prove intent, she supports that strategy. 

Mr. Eide said when using the CIP as a planning document, looking at the forecasted debt service in 

percent to budget, is that percent assuming that each of those is bonded? And if so, does appropriating it 

ahead of time, change any of that? Mr. Tait said you have to assume because this is what we are planning 

to do, in the planning process you have to assume that you will bond everything. Schedules may change, 

but when we keep to the plan, we reach our goals, hope to be as accurate as possible. 

Ms. DeStefano is more comfortable to put it in every year, appropriate and it disappears if not used.  



LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 

 

 

 

4 

 

For a special appropriation, Mr. Tait said there is a description in it, the language of the special 

appropriation comes from the bond council and would not draw up a resolution unless it adhered to the 

charter.  

Mr. Lundquist said the actions the Legislative Council can take tonight is to accept the CIP in its entirety, 

reject any item or reduce any item, or change the priority. Any new item would need to go back to the 

Board of Finance. He clarified with Dave Grogins that splitting the brownfields remediation, repurposing 

Glen Road and open space at $650,000 now, would constitute a change, and is not something that Council 

can do without sending it back to the Board of Finance, and not something that can be done within the 

window of time.  

Mr. Tait offered to ask bond council about de-authorizing part of the number that Mr. Wiedemann 

questioned, for example, the $650,000 roughly $250,000 for remediation and $400,000 for open space. 

In response to Ms. Johnson inquiry, First Selectman Rosenthal plans to bring other items for Edmond 

Town Hall at a later date. 

MR. KNAPP MOVED TO AMEND THE 2018-2019 – 2022-2023 CIP - PROJECTS IN 2019-2020 

DICKINSON PAVILION REPLACEMENT, EDMOND TOWN HALL EXTERIOR RENOVATIONS, 

LIBRARY RENOVATIONS/REPLACEMENTS/UPGRADES, HAWLEY-REPLACE BOILER & 

LIGHTING ENERGY PROJECT BE MOVED TO 2020-2021; PROJECTS IN 2020-2021 RADIO 

SYSTEM UPGRADE AND CONSOLE, FFH BUILDING REMEDIATION/ DEMOLITION/ 

INFRASTRUCTURE, LIBRARY RENOVATIONS/ REPLACEMENTS/UPGRADES, HAWLEY 

VENTILATION AND HVAC RENOVATIONS BE MOVED TO 2021-2022; PROJECTS IN 2021-2022 

FFH BUILDING REMEDIATION/DEMOLITION, FAIRFIELD HILLS PICKLE BALL COURTS, 

EDMOND TOWN HALL GYM AIR CONDITIONING, LIBRARY RENOVATIONS/ 

REPLACEMENTS/UPGRADES, HIGH SCHOOL- REPLACE/RESTORE STADIUM TURF FIELD, 

MIDDLE SCHOOL –VENTILATION, HVAC, AC (PARTIAL) – Phase II BE MOVED TO 2022-2023; 

PROJECTS IN 2022-2023 FFH BUILDING REMEDIATION/DEMOLITION, P & R MAINTENANCE 

YARD IMPROVEMENTS, EDMOND TOWN HALL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS, LIBRARY 

RENOVATIONS/REPLACEMENTS/UPGRADES, REED – INSTALL HIGH EFFICIENCY GAS 

BOILERS & LED LIGHTING BE MOVED TO 2023-2024. SECOND BY MR. CARROLL.  

Mr. Knapp said that the previous Council supported the new debt policy, debt service cap of 9% and a 

five year target of 8.5%. To mitigate debt, without compromising roads or school needs, he suggests 

shifting lower priority projects to following years.  

Mr. Eide said expressed some safety concerns, ETH, identify those with safety issues.  

Mr. Honan is not in support of amendment, does not see a need to amend.  

Mr. Lundquist said he understands what to accomplish, but does not support of micromanaging of thought 

and planning that has gone into it so far. 

Mr. Carroll said a lot of it was put in to make if fit out of convenience, and does not see a problem in 

moving issues around, all agreed to get our debt down, he said it does not take out, just changes the 

prioritization and in favor of the change. 

Ms. Johnson said that it should be safety first, second to protect our infrastructure, maintain it, and make 

sure we move forward with a police station, the tradeoff of the schools is of concern.  Not in favor of the 

amendment. 

Mr. Smith asked if the Board of Finance considered this schedule.  

Ms. DeStefano said it is a good point to level to get close to that goal, but is not comfortable moving 

priorities.  

Mr. Wiedemann addressed the schools facilities that are up to standards are held to higher standards than 

Town buildings. 



LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 

 

 

 

5 

 

Ms. DeStefano said the only year in violation at 9.1 in the last year, there may be an easier way to achieve 

that goal, with time, adjustment and planning. 

MR EIDE MOVED TO AMEND MR. KNAPP’S AMENDMENT TO THE 2018-2019 – 2022-2023 

CIP SUCH THAT DICKINSON PAVILLION REPLACEMENT, EDMOND TOWN HALL EXTERIOR 

RENOVATIONS, AND ALL BOE PROJECTS REMAIN IN THEIR CURRENT PLAN YEARS. NO 

SECOND. MOTION TO AMEND AS MADE BY MR. EIDE DOES NOT MOVE FORWARD.  

MOTION TO AMEND THE 2018-2019 – 2022-2023 CIP AS MADE BY MR. KNAPP FAILS. (8-3) 

(Mr. Knapp, Mr. Wiedemann, Mr. Carroll) 

 

MR. KNAPP MOVED TO AMEND THE 2018-2019 – 2022-2023 CIP TO REDUCE THE 2018-2019 

(YEAR ONE) LIBRARY RENOVATIONS/ REPLACEMENTS/UPGRADES TO $300,000 FROM 

$350,000 AND THAT TECHNOLOGY BE FUNDED OUT OF THE LIBRARY BUDGET AND NOT 

BONDED. SECOND BY MR. CARROLL.  

Mr. Knapp said that this would be a way to send a message that technology should come out of the 

library’s budget and does not support bonding for technology. Mr. Honan said that he would need to 

abstain since his wife serves on the library board.  

ALL IN FAVOR TO AMEND. (9-1) (Mr. Eide) Mr. Honan abstained. 

 

Council continued discussion, Mr. Wiedemann asked about the SHS permanent memorial, First 

Selectman Rosenthal said it is on schedule. Mr. Wiedemann questioned the cost of Treadwell and NHS 

turf field replacement costs. Ms. Mangold could only comment on Treadwell, NHS is a much larger 

project and not funded by Parks and Rec.  

 

MR. LUNDQUIST MOVED TO AMEND THE 2018-2019 – 2022-2023 CIP TO REDUCE FFH 

BUILDING REMEDIATION/ DEMOLITION/INFRASTRUCTURE BY $2 MILLION IN YEAR 2020-

2021 (YEAR THREE) AND TO REDUCE FAIRFIELD HILLS PICKLE BALL COURTS BY $180,000 

IN YEAR 2021-2022 (YEAR FOUR). SECOND BY MR CARROLL.  Mr. Lundquist needed to modify 

his amendment so that the pickle ball courts was $250,000. MR. LUNDQUIST MOVED TO MODIFY 

HIS AMENDMENT TO REDUCE FAIRFIELD HILLS PICKLE BALL COURTS TO $250,000 IN 

YEAR 2021-2022 (YEAR FOUR). SECOND BY MR. CARROLL. Mr. Lundquist explained that this 

would reduce debt service to under 9% in year five. Outdoor lights for pickle ball could be put off. Ms. 

Johnson is in support of full funding for pickle ball courts.  ALL IN FAVOR TO MODIFY MR. 

LUNDQUIST’S AMENDMENT. (10-1) (Ms. Johnson) 

ALL IN FAVOR TO AMEND THE 2018-2019 – 2022-2023 CIP TO REDUCE FFH BUILDING 

REMEDIATION/ DEMOLITION/INFRASTRUCTURE BY $2 MILLION IN YEAR 2020-2021 

(YEAR THREE) AND TO REDUCE FAIRFIELD HILLS PICKLE BALL COURTS TO $250,000 

IN YEAR 2021-2022 (YEAR FOUR). (11-0) 

 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE 2018-2019 – 2022-2023 CIP AS RECOMMENDED BY THE 

BOARD OF FINANCE AS AMENDED TO REDUCE THE 2018-2019 (YEAR ONE) LIBRARY 

RENOVATIONS/ REPLACEMENTS/UPGRADES TO $300,000 FROM $350,000 AND THAT 

TECHNOLOGY BE FUNDED OUT OF THE LIBRARY BUDGET AND NOT BONDED,  

REDUCE FFH BUILDING REMEDIATION/ DEMOLITION/INFRASTRUCTURE BY $2 

MILLION IN YEAR 2020-2021 (YEAR THREE) AND TO REDUCE FAIRFIELD HILLS 

PICKLE BALL COURTS TO $250,000 IN YEAR 2021-2022 (YEAR FOUR). ALL IN FAVOR. 

(10-1) (Mr. Knapp) 



LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 

 

 

 

6 

 

 

VOTER COMMENT: None. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:  None 

 

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 10:23 pm. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

June Sgobbo 

Clerk 

 

Attachments: 2018 Pickleball Fact Sheet. 

 

 

 

 

These are draft minutes and as such are subject to correction by the Legislative Council at the next 

regular meeting.  All corrections will be determined in minutes of the meeting at which they were 

corrected. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
















	LC MEETING 1.17.2018 MINUTES
	Pickleball Fact Sheet

